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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT H
DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY ECEIvE D
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA : Criminal No. 10- %% DEC 16 201
: 24
V. : é%%:?7A78$0
: WILLANT WATs—
DOWANN ANDRADE, : 21 U.S.C. § 841 CLeRk
a/k/a “Red West,” and : 21 U.S.C. § 84e6
JACKIE SMALL : 18 U.S.C. § 922(qg)
' : i8 U.s.C. § 2

INDICTMENT

The Grand Jury in and for the District of New Jersey,
sitting at Trenton, chérges:
COUNT _ONE
In or about February 2008, in Asbury Park, in Monmouth
County, 1in the District of New Jersey and elsewhere, the

defendants,

DOWANN ANDRADE, a/k/a “Red West,”
and
and JACKIE SMALL,

did knowingly and intentionally conspire and agree with each
other and with others to distribute and to possess with intent to
distribute 5 grams or more of a mixture and substance containing
a detectable amount of cocaine base, that is “crack” cocaine, a
Schedule II narcotic drug controlled substance, contrary to Title

21, United States Code, Sections 841 (a) (1) and (b) (1) (B).

In violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section

846.
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QUNT_ TWO

On or about September 25, 2007, in Monmouth County, in the

District of New Jersey and elsewhere, the defendant,
DOWANN ANDRADE, a/k/a “Red West,”

did knowingly and intentionally distribute and possess with
intent to distribute 50 grams or more of a mixture and substance
containing a detectable amount of cocaine base, that is “crack”
cocaine, a Schedule IT narcotic drug controlled substance.

In violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections

841(a) (1) & (b) (1) (A), and Title 18, United States Code, Section

2.
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COUNT THREE

On or about February 20, 2008, in Asbury Park, in Monmouth
County, in the District of New Jersey and elsewhere, the
defendant,

JACKIE SMALL,
did knowingly and intentionally distribute and possess with
intent to distribute 5 grams or more of a mixture and substance
containing a detectable amount of cocaine base, that is “crack”
cocaine, a Schedule II narcotic drug controlled substance.

In violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections
841l{a) (1) & (b) (1) (B), and Title 18, United States Code, Section

2.
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COUNT FOUR

On or about May 13, 2010, in Asbury Park, in Monmouth
County, in the District of New Jersey and elsewhere, the
defendant,

DOWANN ANDRADE, a/k/a “Red West,”

having been convicted of a crime punishable by imprisonment for a
term exceeding one year in the State of New Jersey, did knowingly
‘possess in and affecting commerce a firearm, namely, a loaded
High Point model C9, 9mm pistol, bearing serial number P112310,
and ammunition, namely, five (5) rounds of CBC 9mm hollow point
ammunition and one (1) round of Winchester 9mm ammunition.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections
922 (g) (1) and 924 (a) (2), and Title 18, United States Code,

Section 2.
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FORFEITURE ALLEGATIONS

1. The allegations contained in Count Four of this Indictment
are incorporated by reference as though set forth in full herein
for the purpose of alleging forfeitures pursuant to Title 18,
United States Code, Section 924(d) (1) and Title 28, United States
Code, Section 2461 (c).
2. Upon conviction of the offense in violation of Title 18,
United States Code, Section 922{(g) as set forth in Count Four of
this Indictment, the defendant,

DOWANN ANDRADE, a/k/a “Red West,”
shall forfeit to the United States any firearms and ammunition
involved in or used in the commission of this offense, including

the following:

a High Point model C9, 9mm pistol, bearing serial
number P112310, five (5) rounds of CBC 9mm hollow point
ammunition, and one (1) round of Winchester Smm

ammunition.
All pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section

924 (d); and Title 28, United States Code, Section 2461 (c).
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AUL J¥ FISHMAN
United States Attorney
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